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June 12,2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

I) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into a SOLE
SOURCE contract with Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover, NH,
Vendor #177200, in the amount of $183,982 for the federal Weatherization Assistance Program
(WAP) effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval for the period July 1, 2024
through June 30, 2025. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in FY 2025
upon availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

NH Department of Energy Low Income Weatherization FY2025
02-52-52-520510-33560000-074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $183,982

2) Further request authorization to advance to the vendor $21,148 of the above-referenced
contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of U.S. Department of Energy's (USDOE) grant
guidance (10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the
Weatherization Assistance Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of
services to clients eligible for the Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), and their historical
performance delivering the weatherization program.

The Department is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization
Assistance Program, funded by a grant from USDOE. The objective of the program is to
weatherize homes to reduce energy consumption and energy costs in eligible low income
households. Priority is given to households that include people who are elderly, disabled, or
children, and households with high energy usage. The Department contracts with New
Hampshire's Community Action Agencies to provide weatherization services at the local level.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sunimu
and the Honorable Council

June 12,2024
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The Department estimates that the USDOE's WAP grant award to New Hampshire will
contribute to the weatherization of approximately 136 homes in the State.

The requested advance of funds will enable Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
to operate the program between monthly reimbursements from the State, and may only be used
for allowable program expenses as detailed in Exhibit C.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this contract.

spectfull/^submitted,

X

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P47 <versk>D 2/23/2023)

Notice: This agreement and diofits attachments shaJI become public upon submission to Governor end
Executive Council for approval. Any infonnation that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in vrriting prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

- The State ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTinCATION.

I.I State Agency Name

Department of Energy
12 State Agency Address

21 S. Fruit St., Ste 10, Concord, NH 03301

IJ Contractor Name

Community Action Partnership of StrafFord County
1.4 Contractor Address

577 Central Street, Suite 10, Dover, NH 03820

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 435-2500

1.6 Account Unit and Class

33560000-074

1.7 Completion Date
6/30/2025

1.8 Price Limitation

$183,982

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Kirk Stone, Weatherization Program Manager
1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-3670

l.ll ContractorSign^KDip

L liL --shki
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatoty

Betsey Andrews Parker, CEO

1.1 Bl'State Agency Signature 1 f 1.14 Name and Thle of State Agen^ Signatory

Jared S. Chicoine, Commissioner

t.^ Approval by theN.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (^f applicabU)

II By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form. Substance and Executlon)f(/'cpp/itob/e^

B,. Mstopkef^am on-. 5/13/2024
Senior Assistant Attornev General

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council ((f applicable)

G&CItem number G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block l.l
("Stale'*), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE«X)MPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereundcr, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Coundl
approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date"). .
3.2 Ifthe Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement docs not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs

■ incurred or Slices performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion E)ate
^)ecified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contr^,
all obligations of the State hereundcr, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereundcr, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no evem shall
the State be liable for any payments heiwnder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reducdon or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, cHmmates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or avall^ility of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or In part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstonding any provision in this Agreemem to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in die performance

hereof, and shall be the only end the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offtet fiom any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.rin connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which Impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement Is funded In any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as die State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with ail applicable Intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor vrarrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Sc^iccs, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to this
Agreement.
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8. EWNT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES. in 7 ill ̂

S— ^£5~^i£HSa
- o«on or

lhe.occuiTen« of my .Evmt of Deftulv the Slue may P"" 'mttm'approvaJ of the State. ' / '
«., ";,^0^«^OR.S RELATION TO THE-.STATE. .th
Defeult and requiring it to be,remedied within, in the absen^ofa «il r^ects an

the State.

p-«.^-=state-to,iv^pq^: —

^^ give^thc Control a written notice specifying the Event of * its affiliates.' Becomes tire di^
^ftultotreattheAgrepmentasbreached,^ Il'r- '^t CSOVo) Vm^
7''::'rr*""---'«-''--'>^J^ jSssscsssssaKae^
9. termination. the Contractor. -^ ■ ^ ̂ W atl oFthe a^ of

paragraph 8, the State may at its sol«
dis^oni.termin^ the Agreement for any reason in whole or in

recordings, pictonal .reproductions, drawings, anaivs^mmhir '^'""h'ty is hw^ rê

.^s^=r;r3S s.^ssT-'—

Page 3 of4

Contractor Initials



18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or14. INSURANCE. mA Hi«charfled only bv an instrument in writing signed by the parties
14.1 The Contractor shall, at Jts mIc heret^nd only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
continuously maintain in foi^ and shall following discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
or assignee to obtain and mamtain in force, 8 Haj^pshire unless no such approval is required under the
'^TJT^eroiat general liability insurance against ail claims of circumstances pursuant to State law. rule or policy.bodily injury, death or property damage, in founts ofnot less than ^„nirE OF LAW AND FORUM.
$1,000,000 per occurrtncc and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess, Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed

in aeenrdance with the laws ofthc State ofNcw Hampshire except
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covenng all g^^remacy clause requires otherwise. The
subject to subparegn^h wcrditig used in this Agicentent is the wording chosen by the80% ofthc whole replacement value of the I^P^ oaitie^ express their mutual intent, and no rule of constructionl4.2Thepolioiesdescribedinsubp«ng,^hl4.1he«^^^^^^ SSlteVpliZi^nstor in fitvorof^ty party,
policy forms and endorsements approved for use m this Agreement, including the
New Hampshire by the N.H. Dcf^ent of Insu^cc, and issu ortWtgcd breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
by insurers licensed in the State of New arbitration but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the

i\Z rr:icr.1-up.rtorCourtofNcwHan,pahi.whichsh.,for all insurant required under dris Agre^^t At the have exolusivejurisdietton thereof.request oftheContractmg Officer, or any suaessor, e CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between
Sll provide certifieatefs) of insuntnee fo^
insurance required under this Agreement. The eetufl^ef ) of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,insurance Z any renews thereof shall be artached and are •
incorporated herein by reference.

21 third parties. This Agreement is being entered into for

N.H. RSA chapter 281-A.Contnmtor shall maintam, and require «fe™« ̂ r^« only, w
-n'-P-^tion, construction or meaning of the provisions of this

person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agre^t The Agreement.Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Offiw identifi^ in bloc cpgriAL PROVISIONS. AddiUonal or modifying

™ ̂ -—

ttnewal(s) theieof, which shall be attached and m incorporated herein by reference.
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for FURTHER ASSURANCES, The Contractor, along with its
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for ̂  other claim or MJURTOER ASs^
b««fi. for Contractor, or any actions as may be
Contractor, which might anse under applicable Stto o —uired to carry out the provisions of this AgreementH^npshire W^ers' ^ ^rg^t'e^ffTto^e trSions con'templat^l hereby,
perfonnancc of the Services under this Agreement a

c .. f •♦-►ir.rkbe ^fvfraBILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this

,2. notice, Anynoticeby.partyl^totbeo*^^be de<mied to have been duly delivered or pvCT^th^ consUtutes the entire agreement and
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States P«t atc^ hSwein the parties, and supersedes all pnor
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks . understandings with respect to the subject matter
andl.4.herem.

^  Contractor InitialstOaXc^^jSLjj^H



1.

2.

4.

5.

FEXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

2 CFR 200 as amcnd^tUniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and
^dit Requirements for Federal Awards), 10 CFR 440 dated February I 2002 '

the.New Hainpshire Weatherizatioh Assistance'

FielHO.H Assistance Program Policies and Procediires, and
1?"" - '"fo'^eable documents under this

mm2v Department of Energy (Department).reserves th'e righftb u«^any legal
S.K ■"='"'''"8' •"« "o» limited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of

^enLs S°" ^rsonnei, disbarment of agency personnel, disbarment ofageimies and/or subgrantees from present orfuture'contfBcts,''ahd such otKeriegai
remedies as ,determined to be appropriate by the New Hampshire Department ot Justice
Pr^^ ° "^Sulations.pertainiiig to the Weatherization'Assistance
^rSuLan P aT?, p i" with 2 CFRThis audit^eport shall include a schfelule of

^ expenditures by contract or grant number of all ertpenditures during the
r " ® competitive bidding proceSs to choose a(ju^ificdifinancialrauditoratieast every fouryears. ^

The audit report shall include a. schedule of prior year's questioned costs along with a
response to the current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all

hfn """J!!!" """" «i°"8 with the audit re,jort shall beforwarded,to toe Department within one month of the time of receipt by tod Granteeaccompanied by an action pian, if applicable, for eachfihdingdr questioned cost.
^e following paragraph shall be added to Paragraph 9 of the General Provisions of the

tJ '

Zu 1i" "=f (except those of $5,000 or less) awarded by the Subgrantee
Um^ Dep^ent of Energy, the US DOE, the Comptroller General of theUnited States, or ̂ y.duly authorized representatives; access to any books documents
pa^rs andretmrds of the Subgrantee or their subcontractors, which are directly pertinentto-the Weathenzation Assistance Program for the purpose of making audits
examinations, cxccrpts and transcription." *

"le following sentence shall be deleted- "The
iSi^ tô hosfoT o Termination Report sliall beIdentical to those of any Final Report descnbed in EXHIBFT A.-"

The cto^ charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost
pnnciples detailed in 2 CFR 200 SubpartE-Cost Principles.

Award No. PE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01 /2022
ALN No. 81.042 Exhibit ^'B.C
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Initials



6. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Grantee
for three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for awards
that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or
annual financial report, as stated in 2 CFR 200.333 - Retention Requirements for
Records.

7. This is not a Research and Development (R&D) award. The Department's indirect cost rate
is 25.14 percent

8. Kirk Stone, Wcatherization Program Meager at the Department, has been designated
with the responsibility for overseeing this contract.

9. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between
the parties that no portion of the "Grant" funds may be used for the purpose of obtaining
additional Federal funds under any other law of the United States, except if authorized
under that law.

10. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following are attached and signed:
Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Certification Regaling
Lobbying; Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility
Matters; Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act Compli^ce;
Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke; Assurance of Compliance
Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; and Certification Regarding the
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance.

11. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT. All contracts and subgrants in excess of
$2,000.00 for construction or repair shall include a provision for compliance with
Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 USC 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor
Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act provides that each Grantee, subcontract or
subgrantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the
construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The subgrantee should report all
suspected violations to the Department.

12. PROCUREMENT. Subgrantee shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart D
- Post Federal Award Requirements - Procurement Standards, with special emphasis on
financial procurement (2 CFR 200 Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and property
management (2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post Federal Award Requirements - Property
Standards).

13. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests
shall be submitted to the State within 60 days of the completion date (Agreement Block
1.7).

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01/2022 Exhibit A. B, C
ALNNo. 81.042 Initiaisa^Date5£^^
Community Action Partnership of Straffbrd County Page2or5



1.

3.

4.

EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

jiC^munity Action Partnership of StiWord County, hereinafter "the Grantee," agrees to
perforni,weatherizatipn seryiws and all additional services and other work necessary to
provide Weatherization Assistance Progr^ (WAP) services to eligible low income
mdiyiduals m acwn^cc the regulations set forth by the: U. S. Department of

'P lQ.9PR44p,d4tg,^ebraiary l.'2002.,and.in 2.GER.200 asamend^, and in
®P<^™ance ;with,the;proyisions.and;proceduresxontainedfin the most recent New
y^pshire-^ea^CTi^^^ Program (NHWAP) State Plan, Policies and
Procedures MMual, Field .Guide, ̂ d as otherwise administered by the Department.

Periodically the Department may issue Subgrantee Guidance (SG) and Subgrantee
Nopcw (5N) pnpthenmMag^ent and/or guidance clarifications as necessaiy. All such
chang|s.shallt« considered.^^^^^^^ into the NH Weatherization Policies and
P''9P«dH^S',Manual and Field Guide. The. Grantee agrees to alter the Program procedures
in accprdwM with a SG,* SN or other instructions.

.  ■ t. ^. .. •

r^e .Gi^tec^n^ .tp abide .by changes in the NH Weatherization Assistance Program as
prepared byNHWAP and flirtheragrees to perfonn-Weatherization Program services in a

^."lan^e^^at[iy|^.successfully inter^t with utility administered energy efficiency
jpWTinJ^.'PPjhpuschpI^ in order to provide the best services for; New

H.^Rshirc's low-income households.

The (xjnti^t p?!iod, tp.be loipwn as Program Year 2024 (PY24), will commence on upon
Wroval from New Hampshire Governor and Executive Council (Governor and
Executive Council), and will have a completion date of June 30, 2025.

Grantee must provide the Department with a budget for the use of NHWAP funds before
any reimbursement for weatherization work will be paid by the Department.

In PY24, Grantee agrees to complete weatherization services on 13 dwelling units
according to the standards outlined in the most recent NH Weatherization Policies and
Procedures Manual and Field Guide.

(a) Weatherization Services are intended to increase the energy efficiency of the
home, and to improve the home's comfort and safety. A certified energy auditor
will first perform a NHWAP energy audit on the home using scientific test
equipment. Specific ener^ conservation measures and heating source repairs
wll then be implemented in order of priority and cost effectiveness. This
integrated activity is carried out in accordance with provisions and procedures
outlined in the most recent NH Policies and Procedures Manual and Field Guide.

(b) The minimum number of dwelling units and the amount of funds to be expended
shall conform to the provisions of this contract. Deviations of more than 20%

AwardNo. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07A) 1/2022 c * i> ^
/U.N No. 81.042 ^ C
Commuriity Action Partnership of StraflFord County Initialst^R^ ^



from expected dwelling unit goals in any given quarter may result in a reduction
of the contract amounts and a reallocation of funds to other Grantees.

5. In accordance with the US DOE's "Quality Work Plan" (QWP) and the provisions of
"Weatherization Program Notice (WPN) 15-4
httDs://www.eneruv.EOv/eere/vvap/downloads/wpn-l 5-4-qualitv-work-plan-requirement-

uDdate) and as modified in WPN 22-4 fWeatherization Program Notice 22-4: Quality
Work Plan Requirement Update 1 Department of Energy), beginning April 1,2015,
Grantee must have regular and reliable access to properly trained and certified Quality
Control InspectoKs), available as either staff or Grantees, able to fully function in that
capacity. This contract provides funding for continued training and technical assistance
sufficient to allow the Grantee to secure and maintain the skilled personnel necessary to
meet the requirements of WPN 15-4 and WPN 22-4.

6. All work performed under the. Weatherization Assistance Program in New Hampshire,
using federal money from any WAP program year, must meet the minimum
specifications defined in the US Department of Energy^s "Quality Work Plan" (QWP)
and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). Details are presented in the
Standard Work Specifications (SWS) for Home Energy Upgrades referred to in US DOE
Weatherization Program Notice 15-4 and updated in Weatherization Program Notice 22-
4, as well as in the New Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program's Field Guide,
2021 Edition, which governs how WAP energy conservation measures (ECMs) are to be
implemented. The Grantee must ensure, and be able to document for the Department,
that all staff and Grantees who perform Weatherization woric in PY24 are properly
trained and certified for that work and have been informed that their work must meet the
requirements of the SWS or dwelling units will not be considered complete and
reimbursement will not occur.

Award No. DE.EE0009916; Award Date 07/01/2022 .
ALN No. 81.042 ^
Community Action Partnerehip of Strafford County ^ ofS



EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

CO—

$  8 ̂  &.Technical Assistance,I 11'^ '"^y fprHe^th & Safety Pleasures.
131V, K«^dedfprjl^in^meisuiis.' ..^^5105.741 (the balance), to be spent on weatheriation activities (Program Activity)
$21,148 will be issued as a program cash advance,

Drawdowns from the total contracted amount will be naid th thp hmnt^ i a ■

-»sr:r^ 305^^ on^ ̂  estabTishdd'by the State Sd 2 CFR

=3g|=»7r.ir.'!™s~s

Ssr=sH-s~-s====-^^
The Department may. as a function of Its administrative oversight. modlfV contracted h„H»«

Award No. DE-EE00099I6; Award Date 07/01/2022
ALN No. 81.042 Exhibit A, B,CCommunity Action Partnership of Strafrbrd County Initials DatcS|^7 ̂  l/



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of ̂tions
5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U S.C 701 rt seq.)
and further agrees to have the Grantee's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPtACE REQUIREMENTS
alternative I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - GRANTEES
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - GRANTEES

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - GRANTEES
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151 -5160 of the f>rug-Free Workplace Act
of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. SubtiUe D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The 1. 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part II of the May 25. 1990, Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and r^uire
certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sulxontractors). pnor to aw^ that they will maintain
adnig-tree workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides Aat agrantce (and by inf<«n^ su^grtmtccs
and subcontractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the Departmcm
in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate ̂
out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awar^ the grant Fdse
certification or violation ofthe certification shall be grounds for susperision of payments, suspension or termination
of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Grant^ s using this form should send it to.
Kirk Stone, Weatherization Assistance Manager, New Hampshire Department of Energy
21 S. Fruit Street, Suite 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacti^ distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee s womplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about-

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-fiee workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistant programs; arid
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in

the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance ofthe grant be given
a copy ofthe statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the sUtemcnt required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will-

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and . . r - ia
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a cnmi^ drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction.

InitialsALN No. 81.042 ^^Paoelof?
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County ^



(B)

(e)

•  USPEI?ARTiyffiOTOFAGWCULTtm£-
US DEPiUlTl^NT
US DEPA^tMENT OF ENERGY

grant activity Jte.convicted,employee was woildnSTthfe ^ ?"

Taking ̂propriate personnel action against such an employee up to and inclurfina

ar.S°o; of *<= Rehabilitation Act of 1973. af
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NEW HAMPSHIHE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Grantee identified in SecUon 1.3 of the General Provisions agre« to comply wiA the provisions of S^ion 319
of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and
further agrees to have the Grantee's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

DS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - GRANTEES
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - GRANTEES

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - GRANTEES
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Community Services Block Grant
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
HRRP Program
WeatherizaBoo Assistance Program

Contract Period: From the date of approval by the NH Governor and Executive Council to June 30,2025
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersi^^ .
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Con^ in cowection with
the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contiactor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to my person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Cong^ an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contr^or), the
undereigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

f3) The undersigned shall rtsquire that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all Uers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this ti^swtion was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this tranMcti^
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the requir^ edification shall be
sub^t^a civil pcnalty,<rfnot less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

m /} p6L ̂
Granti^ Reprosenrative Slgn^ Representative Title

rnminim:i^fVji/yi XkAnirSr\,fni-

A»«dNo. DE.EE0009916;Aw«d Date 07/01/2022
ALN No. 81.042 PaoeSof?
Communi^ Action Partnership of Strafford County ^



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHttIT F

InsTnialonsfor Certt/lcation'

"' |£as'.;s'? ..
"S5 "ill ~ I«^l,^.r, |„ aM •/Of Why It cannot provide the certification. The c^fiMtlon ^ ""bmit an explanaUon

» sss&irsrKssr™^^ '• * «
DcfMrtment detemined to'iehier iritb'ihis reli^a was placed-when the
^c,pant knowingly rendered an eJne^uS
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any tiTe the to whom this
^ erroneous when'siibmittwJ drh& l^me'eiTOnMui^rJ-"^^ certification(5) The ternis "covered Mrisactibn;" '"ilS
p^cipant." "person." "prinia^y-covei&l' feriartibn^-ltfi' ■ 'it-®'" "'o""" covered transaction "

3W propt^ to it will include the Cause
Covered Transactions," provid^l^'ftb Dmal^^ ̂̂ ^^ ,??.<' Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier

(9) excluded ̂ ies) participant may. but is not lequir^'to.

for tran^ions authorized under oaraiMh « nr tK ■ ' 'ttraon knowingly enters irito a lower ti^^S^ trZsZ'on ''' i 'Pteijaht in a.cbVSed
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded fix>m paiticiDation in ^ ^ suspend (tebaW

U>«.ePederC government theOepartm^eZirthr^^Z^^^^^^^^^
A^Na^E0<K«9,6;Awa,dD«e07^.^022
Community Action Partnership of Straffbrd County initials ibitOthruH

iDate^jJ^d
Page'4 of?



0)

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
RespottslbiUty Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

t.l ^ « ..TOntb ■•!-««. IW""' '«'W™"- ■"exclud^ftomMveredlransicliombyanyFederddet-rtoenlwigency,

„  1^. z2t i°:s;
;r.r£:;C'~c;rJsr'.rsr-
statements, or receiving stolen property,

this certification; and .

(d) have not. within a three-year period preceding mis applicatioiVproposal. had one or more publictransactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or defau .
♦ • ..noKU tn rprtifv to any of the statements in this certification,

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable »participant shall attach an explanaUon to this proposal (contract).

i  " •" """"""'"
lower tier covered transactions.

a: c-„«ot..ris Grantee's Representative TideGrantee Representative Signature ^

''mm'ri ''I. Af .ftnffrr) ^ —S/im/M
Grantee Name'

Exhibit DthniH

AwardNo. DE-EE0009916; Award Dale 07/01/2022 initials Pat^-^HV ^
ALN No. 81.042 «._j^ a. Page 5 of?
Communi^ Action Partnership of Strafford County



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

. CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE
t, t * . ' •

identified in Swtion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Grantee's representative
as identified in Sections MI and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following certification:

this prpposaJ (contract) theGrantw ̂  to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions ofthe Americans with Disabilities Act of IW.

fe/- /j i} MlGrantee Representative Signature

Grantee N

Grantee's Repre^tative Title

Award No. PE;£E00099]6; Award Date 07/01/2022
ALN No. 81.042
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Exhibit p thru H
Initials thP bat<^^W-c5i/

Page 6 of?



NEW HAMPSfflRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services arc funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or
Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/grantee certifies that it will comply with the requirements
of the Act.

The applicant/grantee further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any sub
awards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all Grantees shall certify accordingly.

LMl
Grantee Representative Signature Grantee's Representative Title

Grantee N^e Dai^J

Award No. DE.EE0009916; Award Dale 07/01/2022 ^ »d
ALN No. 81.042 Initials Date ^
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County 7 of 7



DOEF 1600.5 (06-94)
OWSCotrelNe. 19100400
All Other Editions Ate Obsolete

NEW HAMPSHIRE PEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT I

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISpWJ^ATIQN IN rapERALLY ASSICTED PROGRAMS

OMBBaMiu Disclosure SW

e^m^d to. average 15 minutw pw.isponse,
®  casting sources, gathering,Mcl rnimimng t^^

.<^||e^OT>Cjrifon^^ ,Send; cbmmente'n^in^i'th
of jnform.atipn..incIuding siij^tiOra,for reducmg.this burxleni'to

!^£^^M;P9'icy. Plans, and i^,^ighCR^«!^
0910.0400),4s. P^>iitpf.ES^; lObO Avwue

(19lSi"w^hS^
^pffliqupf^ A<1*QB Pprtnershlp of Strafford Cdhnfyi (Hereinafter called the "GiWtee") HEREB Y AGREES to

•  fights Act:.pf>l96^*.,(Rub.. L. 88:352), Section 16 of the.Fcderal.Energy.
^^•275),.^ipn 4pI,of the Energy Reorganization Act.of 1974 (Rub.'L. 93-

amende (Pub. L. 92:318, Pub. L..93-5^,'and Pub L
^ctpfl973iRub. L..93-1 \2%.tht AgeDiscrimination'Act on975:(Pub.'

L.SIQ.284).,the.Department ofEnergy.Organiition
Act of 1976.ia^:amended; (Pub.tL.i94r385)and Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations; Part 10^. In accordanre with the above laws and regulations issued

purauant tlwi«o, the Grantee agr^ to assure that no person in the United States shall, on the ground ofrace, color
n^ifln^ngm. sc^ age; or .dis4U)ility,fbe:exciudcd^from participation in:'be denied the benefits of.Wbe btKefwise
subj^^ discnmination under any program or activity in which the GraritecT^ives Federal Assistance from
th^LJcpartmcnt of Energy. •, .. -ri> . i>--

■' ; uU.- .;1 1 ... . • ' . • •.y'"c
ApplicabfUty.:andrPertQdtof:ObU^tioDIn Ae cas^fMy_serv]re, financial aid, covered employment; equipment, property,'or strutture 'provided,1ca^
or impreved^wi^ Eeder^ assis^^^ the Grantee by the Department ofEnerfc^, tWs^^urahcebbSthe Gr^tee for the penod during which Federal .assistance is extended; In the caw of any tr^sfer ofsuch service
fi^cial ai^ equipment, pro^, or structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period during which
Federal^istance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obiip^the Gi^tee for
nWi^I^tK 0^ possession of the property. In all o^er cases, this assurance^g^'the Gramre for the; period dunng which the'Federal distance is eirt'enaed to'lhe Gran g^bV^the
Department of Ener^. ■" »* v'-

EmploymeDt Practices

^  offtie Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Grantee's emphiymentaffert the delivery of services m programs or activities resulting from Fedeial assistance extended by the
the Grant^^agrecs not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national origin, sejc''^ 'ordisabil^, in its employment practices. Such employment practices m&y include, but are not limited to

refitment, ^vemsing, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion-deniotion, transfer, of pay, training and
participation in upward mobility programs; or other forms of cbrhi^nsation and use of facilities. '
Sabredpieot Assurance

The Gran^ shall require ^y individual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or
subleases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply with

No. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01/2022 „ u-u-
A^N.No,(81.042
Cbmmunity A^on Partnership of Straftbrd County



DOEF 1600.5 (06-94)
OUSConraNO. I91(M>400

All Other Editiora Arc Obsolete

laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written assurance form;
however, the obli^on of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the collection
or submission of written assurance forms.

•  •

Data CoUectloD and Access to Records

The Grantee agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a result
of the Grantee's receipt of Federal assistance from the Department of Energy. Such information shall include, but
is not limited to the following: (1) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related data necessary
for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited discrimination;
(2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age and disability; (3) data regarding
covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving beneficiaries of
the program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or understand
English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related information
adequfltf for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying access to any
person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by race, color, national
origin, sex, age and disabili^ in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the program; and (6)
any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy to be relevant to the obligation to assure
compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.

The Grantee agrees to submit requested data to the Dispartment of Energy regarding programs and activities
developed by the Grantee from die use of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of the Grantee (including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books,
accounts, and other soured of information pertinent to the Grantee's compliance with the civil rights laws shall
be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the
Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be
provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans,
contracts (excluding procurement contracts), properly, discounts or other Federal assistance extended after the date
hereof, to the Grantees by the Department of Energy, including installment payments on account after such data
of application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The Grantee recognizes and agrees that
such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations and agreements made in this
assurance, and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance. This
assurance Is binding on the Grantee, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the person(s) whose
signatures appear below and who are authorized to si^ this assurance on behalf of the Grantee.

Grantee Certiflcatioo

The Grantee certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the grant, it will comply with all
applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will be furnished to the Grantee upon written request to
DOE).

Representative NflmeyTitle:?^^^^^'^
Signature; Date ^ J ̂  ̂
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
577 Central Avenue, Suite 10, Dover, NH 03820
603.435.2500

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01/2022 Exhibit I
ALN No. 81.042 Initials 5l£_ DatcS
Community Action Partnership of Strafford CounQ' Page 2 of 2



NEW HAMPSHIRE.DEPARTAffiNT OF'EiVERGY

SSr."Si"iSeF
initial award is below $30,000 b'iit subseaueni crant mnH? of $30,000. or more.. If theS30,00p. U,e awarf is sabje« to the FFATA reporting teq'uitem'e^t^Tome SoTt^awS-'" "

Ne:n?5|irSe^\X™« Co«n/„/o™o«ooX the
award subj<^ to the FFATA reporting requirerriMts: ° for any subaward or contract
J ) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) ^ICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
o; wgram source

7)
8) Principal plaM-of performance
9) Unique identifiisf of die entity (UEI #)
10) Total Mmpensation and names ofthe top five executives if

pi. >. -.y.

&s±!e!!iagfl;a^and 2 CFR Part 170 w / Act^PuWic Law 109-282 and Public Uw 110-252
to have the Grantee's repn^n^ve, as ide^^'^'^'^t- further agrees
execute the following ' of the General Provisi^

and Ttansi^ncy^^ ^ Podo™! Financial Accoun^ility
^ prl)

AuthonzetfQ^tee Representative Name & Title '
Grantee Representative Si

m
^5Grantee N

Date

Award Date 07/01^022
ALN#81.q42 —^ ExhibhJ,
Community Action Partncrehip of StraflFord County Date



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As the Gmntee identified in Section 1,3 of the Oenentl Provisions. 1 certify tJ«t the responses to the below
listed questions are true and accurate.ISlCU I^UWVIWISJ M

I. The DEI number for your entity is: _Z-3

K S. fSL contracts, su^ntracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or cooperative agreements?
NO ^^YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above b YES, please answer the following:

1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
NO 4^YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation ofthe five most highly compensated officem in your business or organi^aUon
are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:.

Amount:,

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07A)l/2022
ALN #81.042
Community Action Partnership of Stratford County

Initials^oJ^^'^
Page 2 of2



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT L

CERTIFICATION REGARDING NHPA aad NEPA COMPLIANCE FOR WAP23
/-P .

Th^,qrant^ identified in Section 1.3 of the General 'Provisions agrees to comply : with the
provisions of.the.^NationaJ Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 42-U.S.C: §4321 Jet scd" niles
promulgated thereunder (40 CFR Parts 1500-1508), guidance documents issued by the^ffi^ of
^^^em of^F ''f" Department of Energy (U.S. DOE), New Hampshire
^^nop Off Programmatic Agreement,
GFaWAP.2(^4llNlS:'SnX' Energy (EERE) NEPA Determination

Section'06 of the National Historic Preservation

■toaurrlztSe-S^^^
that it will not fund activities that are not '-'Allowable Activities" pursuant tothe National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Determination-WAP24, which include:

Administrative activities associated with management of the designated Weatherization
Office and management ofpiDgrams and strategies in support of weatherization activities

•  j. • -

fl.'' '"P'o'oontation of training programs ahd strategies for weatherizationeffort, including initial home energy audits, final inspections, and client education.

enerrn, "o®6ed for administrative activities, weatherizationenergy audits, installation of measures indicated below, and quality controrinspectiohs.-
■  ■ tj- .V4-, '4. WeaAeri^ion activities provided that activities adhere to the requirements of the

i^Uve Reapients DOE executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, are
milled in existing buildings, are appropnately sized, are covered by Appendix A of 10 CFR 440
M^fimlSho ^ approval procedures arid material-approvals process,'

a. ■ Building Shell Measures;
i. Install insulation where needed;
ii. Perform air sealing;
iii. Repair and replace windows, storm windows, install window fi lm, awninas

and solar screens; . » ©
b. Mechanical Measures;

i. Clean, tune.irepair, or replace heating and/or cooling systems;
II. Install duct and heating pipe insulation;
iii. Repair leaks in heating/cooling-ducts;
iv. Install programmable thermostats; ■
V. Repair/replace domestic water heaters;
vi. Install domestic hot water heater tank insulation;

Aw^ No. OE-EE00099i6: Award Date 07/01/2022 - ....
ALN No. 81.042 . .
Community Action Partnership of Stniffbrd County



c. Electric and Water Measures:
i. Install efficient light sources;
ii. Install low-flow showerheads;
iii. Replace inefficient refngerators with energy-efficient models.

5. Energy-related health and safety measures (per Weatherizatlon Program Notice 22-7, or
the most current guidance) provided that activities adhere to the requirements of the Department
executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, occur in existing buildings, and are
limited to:

a. Combustion appliance safety inspections;
b. Air quality assessment and limited removal of formaldehyde, volatile organic

compound, flammable liquids, and other air pollutants;
c. Gas and bulk fuel leak inspections;
d. Testing and/or containment, removal or disposal of lead, asbestos, mold, moisture,

refrigerant, mercury, and other materials so WAP activities may be completed;
e. Radon testing and the installation of precautionary measures to minimize radon

infiltration, including but not limited to, sump pump covers, covering exposed dirt
floors with polyethylene sheeting which contains a rating of no more than 0.1 perm,
which is sealed and attached at all seanis, walls and foundation penetrations;

f. Inspection of combustion appliances and installation of carbon monoxide and
smoke alarms;

g. Install ventilation as. required by the American Society of Heating and Air-
Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) 62.2-2016 standard, including blower door
testing addressing infiltration, ventilation, and exhaust.

6. Weatherizalion Readiness Fund (WRF) supported activities focused on structural, health,
and safety issues in the dwelling which must be addressed before weatherizatlon measures can be
safely and effectively installed, provided that those activities adhere to the requirements of the
Department exwuted Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, are installed in existing
buildings, and are limited to:

a. Repair/replace damaged windows and doors;
b. Electrical and plumbing repairs;
c. Roof repairs;
d. Interior and exterior wall repairs;
e. Ceiling repairs;
f. Floor repairs;
g. Foundation or subspace (crawl space) repairs;
h. Exterior drainage repairs limited to gutter repair or replacement, trimming shrubs,

and/or grading in close proximity to the perimeter of the foundation.

7. Incidental and necessary energy-related repairs and replacements limited to:

a. Repair/replace damaged windows and doors;
b. Electrical and plumbing repairs;

8. Development, implementation, and installation of onsite renewable energy technology
from renewable resources, provided that activities adhere to the requirements of the Department

Award No. DE-EE0009916; Award Date 07/01/2022
ALN No. 81.042 Initials £^Date^^N^
Cwnmunlty Action Partnership of Straffbrd County Page 2 of 3



a.

b.

BTU/HR;
c.

Programmatic Agr^ent, arc installed in or on an existingstructure, and do not require ground.disturbance of tree removal, and limited to:

PV systems appropriately sized that^do not exceed 60 kW-
heating systemsVppropriatcly sized that'do not exceed 200,000

Battery^rage. If wlicable, attached to a structure (e.g., inside a garage) and not
Visible from the public right of way.

Activmes/projecb not lis^ above, including ground disturbing activities and tiee removal-
Mtivities where the following elements exist: extraordinary circumstances, cumulative impacts or~nnect^ actions that may lead to significant effects on the hum^ en"enr oTlv
inconsistency with the 'integral elements" (as contained in 10 CFR Part 1021 Appendix B) ̂

ar^nm''Ajlow^^ ^o. DE-EE00099I6

^ "Allowable Activities" as defined above are subject to additionalNEPA review, which- requires additional documentation and submission of an ehWmrimpntai
qu^onnairc. Ifthe Grantee wants to fund activities that do not qualify as "Allowable Activities "
then Gr^tee agrees to notify the Depanment WAP Administrator, and to Tk NEPA
f^FJleraf ^ Administrator. Activities requiring NEPA review are not authorized
US DOE^ T "ntil the

All Mtivities related to hazardous material identified during a WAP job will be manaoerf in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local requiremeL. ^

'-f-

Grantee agrees to complete (he online US DOE training on NEPA and Historic Preservation

^  .

Grantee Representative SignatJJhe Urant«'^Representative Title

P/trfTVTsViprrA
sr

A>vard No. DE-EE00099I6: Award Date 07/01/2022
ALN No. 81.042

Community Action Partnership of Straffbrd County ^



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan. Sccretao of Siaie of the State of NeAv Hampshire, do hereby ccrtif> that COMMUNITY ACTION
PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY Is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New
Hampshire on May 25. 1965.1 further cenil>- that all fees and documents required bj the Secretary of State s ofiice have been
f^eived and Is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65SS3

Certificate Number: 00066tWll3

%

£
%

sIk

o ■w

iT

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be alfi.\ed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this lOth day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

SecretaiA of State



CERttHCATE OF,AUTHORITY

I.. /Jhr) twebycert|yt!gt.-
1 • • ̂  ^ Ccn«r,unky^:^^^ C Smo^ Coumy.

an.

™  flWaet me puipoee >" hWher Judgment bT

date

^;R,l8 imdefstood that the S^' bf-N^HarnDS^^^^ ^ Ceffcate'ol Authbrtty I fu^v^^

*

Dated:

Signature of Elected Officer

Rav. 03/24/20



\CORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
t  ̂ — ~■— ■

OATEQiMDorrrrn

06/27/2020
M  ̂ 1\ 11r I I *

BCTllg^ATlVECRP«OOUCB»,A>IOTMBC6RTinCATEIWLD^ ^

mooucn

CGIIniunne*. Inc.
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NH 03032

03020

WUROIC

■ttUWCTF

ovmaqes cert^te numbf"- - rnnTiirTTI

man

1J»0.000four*IBR rffto* ■»«*"«
COMVeKCIAL OCNCML LMMjrr
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100.000
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
^Roberts

Pftt>RKIW.y;ASSbr.IATlC>N

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

DOVER • WOIJEBORO
'  . * ■ NORTH COIWAV

To the Board of Directors ,
Cohi'munitY. Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action Partnership
of Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization) and Affiliate, which comprise the
consolidated statements of-financial position as of December 31, 2022 arid 2021, and'the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the consolidated financial'statemerits.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate-as"'of December 31. 2022
and 2021. and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United iStates of America. ■

Basis for Opinion . .
s

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and athe standardsoapplicable. to-financial audits contained m'Government Auditing
StandarxisMssued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for^the^Audit Of the 'Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Community Action Partnership
of.StraffoxdXounty and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical-responsibilities; in accordance with the
relevantethical-requirenients relating to oud audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Respqnsibiiities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Community Acton
Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern within one year
after the date that the consolidated finandal statements are available to be issued.



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
'as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errbr, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Govemment Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from emor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Govemment
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate's
intemal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered In the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and
Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intemal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,- Cost Pfirfeiples. and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis^'khd is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is tfie ' responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and'otf^jfer, records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements, the information has been ̂ subjei^^ to the
auditing proc^ures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements^and '^^iri additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the urideriyirigj accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with .auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the •cbhsolidated^'fihancial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated'^June 15,
2023, on our consideratipn of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulatons,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report-.is.solely.to describe the
sco^ Of bur testing-of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion ori^he e^ectiyeness pf.Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County s internal control over financial repbitirig or oh conipii^ce. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering ppmmunity Action
Partnership of Strafford County's intemal control over financial reporting and compliance..

Dover, islew Hampshire
June 15. 2023



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

2022 2021

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,355.108 $ 1.550,537
Accounts receivable 2,556,852 2,130,211
Contributions receivable 50,000 12,600
Inventory 501,752 511,532
Prepaid expenses 52,046 36,666
Other current assets • 1,334
Current portion of right of use asset 65,513 - •

Total current assets 4,581,271 4.242.880

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Restricted cash 29,455 18.991
Security deposits 8,427 8,469
Property, net of accumulated depreciation 5,804,619 6,110,022
Other noncurrent assets 25,503 25.503
Right of use asset, less current portion shown above 81,312 •

Total noncurrent assets 5,949,316 6,162.985

TOTAL ASSETS $ 10,530,587 $ 10,405,865-

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt $ 95,690 $ 134,868
Accounts payable 445,958 921,039
Accrued payroll and related taxes 129,018 1 36,247
Accrued compensated absences 205,528 145,234
Refundable advances 1,581,774 950,865
Other current liabilities 73,462
Current portion of right of use liability 65,513 ^

Total current liabilities 2,596.943 2.288,253

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above 2,908,484 3,221,845
Security deposits 3,201 3,201
Right of use liability, less current portion shown above 81,312 -

Total noncurrent liabilities 2,992,997 3,225,046

Total liabilities 5,589,940 5,513,299

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions 4,634,862 4,533,937
With donor restrictions 305,785 358.629

Total net assets 4,940.647 4,892,566

TOTAL UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS $ 10,530,587 $ 10,405,865

See Notes to Financial Statements
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CONSOUpATEp.STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 7^1

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant .revenue
• Fees for service
Rent revenue

Public support
In-kind donations

Interest

Fundraising
Other revenue
Gain on disposal of property

,  .Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and net
assets releasedfrom restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services
Child services

Cbrhmunity services
Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization

^ Total program sen/ices

Supporting activities
Management and general

^  Fundraising

Total expenses

P^NGE IN NET ASSETS

NCT ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without bonor
Restrictions

$ 42.329.510
1.976,344

58.600
514.628

988,080
402

167.764

1.216

27.491

46,064.035

166.561

46.230.596

5.120.775
2.123.402

4.158.324

31.536,296
1,791.979

44,730,776

1,179,649

219.246

46.129.671

100,925

4.533.937

With Donor

Restrictions

$

113.717

113.717

(166.5611

(52,844)

■ 358.629

Total

$ 42;329.510
1.976,344

58.600

628.345
988,080

402

■167,764
1.216

27.491

46.177.752

(52,^) 46.177.752

5.120.775
2:^23,402
4.'l58.324

31!536.296
1:79.1.979

44,730.776

>n( -.T-ij,
1.1.79.649

219.246

46.129.671

■  48,081

4.892.566

$  4.634,862 $ '305.785 ' $ 4.940:647

See Notes to Financial Statements
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rOMMUNITY ACTION PARTNFRSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2021

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue

Fees for service

Rent revenue

Public support

In-kind donations

Interest

Fundraising

Other revenue

Loss on disposal of property

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and net
assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services
Child services

Community services

Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization

Workforce development

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundraising

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

24,562,779

301,566

24.664.345

5.251,539
2,036,906

2,459,441

10,714,923

2,483,701
3.793

22,950,303

905,781

68.241

23.924.325

940,020

3.593.917

With Donor

Restrictions

$ 19,989,740 $
2,576,520

51,351

352,142

898,056
635

20,050

725,966

(51,681)

358.629

358,629

(301,566)

57.063

57,063

301,566

Total

$ 19,989,740

2,576,520

51,351

710,771

898,056
635

20,050

725,966

(51,681)

24,921,408

24,921,408

5,251,539
2,036,906

2,459,441

10,714,923

2,483,701
3,793

22,950,303

905,781

68,241

23.924.325

997,083

3.895.483

$  4,533,937 $ 358,629 $ 4.892,566

See Notes to Financial Statements
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ChiM

Sefvteas
Payro8

Fayroi taxes S 2.951.365
Pflnae beneffls 247.208
Retirement 205.921

matertai. fuel 14.995

end dent assistance
hvttid expenses 119.381
Consulants and contract latwr 14.772

supples- 166.829
Occupancy 206.399
Repalri and maintenance

704.886
Insurance 39.766

Training and conferences 71.667
Oepredation 80.246
Travel and transportation 80.133

end postage 42.327
Equipment and computer 3.723
Interest expense '

Indirect^ .

Cl^er program support 105.441
65,716

Total expensei

Community
S»fVfc!—

S  644.016
57.069
34.528

2.162

20.560

968.268

t4.S65

205.366

70.467

23.938

11.150

5.551

34.099

4.808

55

10.658

_  15.314

5 5,120.775 8 2.123,40?

Erwrgy

t  388.986
32.974

30.366

1.569

3.606.402

2.692

9.582

41.243

7.541

1.610

2.526

391

89

10.650

6.568

10.141

4.774

Moutlna

5  920.193
75.584

72.552

6.445

29.909.257

212.431

35.892

141.580

10.406

22.641

7.634

34.641

1i;636

348

24.285

12.037

38,134

S  164.650
12.672

19.799

781

1.514.986

1.597

8.549

18.043

2.763
2.431

17.205

4.328

6,722 .
96

10.544

3.070

3,761

Total Program
Swvteaa

5 5.070.010
425.507

363.166

25.932

35.170.616
983.040

398.114
465.786

976.219

84.414

109.699

113.362

153.592

65.782

15.072

41.417

35.906

105.441
127.699

5 4.156,324 $ 31.536.?96

Intannodlata
(Allecatlon)

Pool^

*  73.087
6.311

82

752

99.599

42.120

(670.668)
440.423

25.811

119

(12.356)

29.326
5.982

J-<0.5681

?  1.791,979 $ 44.730.776

Managamant
and -

Sanaral

*  681.722
63.162

37.953

5.767

139.996

18.091

69.769

660

52.785

26.440

65.443

4.699

11.043

61.815

(105.441)
5.743

<  1.179 649

Fundrat^lf^

6  121.545
9.633

5.220

75

5.040

12.755

3.958

6.201

2.194

259

41.454

769

5.576

1.310

1.438

1.619

Total

1  5.946.344
504.813

406.421

32.526

35.170.616
988.080

650.466

529.957
381.521

527.691

166.554

181.375

239.035

56.894

31.691

72.053

125.141

94.493

_S 46.129.671

Saa Financial SWtmanti -



r^MMUHlTY Acmnw PARTTff QF stwAFFORD CQUTOY

CONSOUOATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YgAR ENDED RgCEMBER 31. 2021

Payroll
Payrel taxes
Frt^ benefits
Retirement
Weatherization material, fuel

and dient assistance

In-kind expenses

Consultants and contract tabor
Consumable supplies
Occupancy

Repairs and maintsnarwe
insurance

Meetings, events ar>d training
Depredation
Trwrel
Printing and postage
Equipment and computer
Interest expense

Other program support
Indirect costs

Total expenses

Child

Ssaisai

i  2,611.252
230.588
100.915

13.218

83.377

573.048

239.299

213,448

612.028

48.939

83.971

80.601

79.670

19.408

3.380

27.793

76.249

38.823
45.536

> S.2S1.539

Community

$  768.110

66.376

38,183

3.001

140.408

324.950

52.738

229.104

175.280

4.881

9,598

9.164

18.502

1,677

265

95.608
6.070

50,206
40.765

Energy

Assistance Housing Wstherteatlon

282.483 8  463.574

24,924 40.252

17.619 31,419

1,223 3.377

2.052.544 9.909.048
. 60

4,627 19,672

430 7.742

31.758 87.618

12.782 48.073

1.312 24.905

394 762

391 23,390

989

7,202 403

7,677 39.490

13.621 8.314

454 5.635

$  123.279
8.988.

15.004

332

2.218.930

660

23,112

17.134

945

6.157

10.774

4.328

1.689

254

46.908

4,917

Workforce Total Program
Davalooment Sfvices

2.317

228

269

12

79

884

4

4.251.015
371.356

293.499

21,161

14,384.307
898.056

317.275
473.836

924.902
115.620

125.947

101.695

126.281

23.763

11.504

217.476
111.171

95.118

86.321

Intermediate

(Allecatlon)

£fiS&

5  69,319

$  •2.036.906 S 2.4S9.441 5 10.714.923 S 2.483.701 8,
3.793 S 22.950.303

Management
and

Gerreral

$  577.712

7.893 46.473

3.398 55,482

274 (3.843)

16.516 164.175

23.939 9.941

(450.603) 42.136

296.872 12.260

12.208 43.416

1.404 13.052

70,500

(5,501) 587

1,275 4,813

4.223 (82.364)

6.377 18,489

(7.594) 19.273

(86.321)

8  905.781

Fundratsing

8  14.794
1.406

1.224

104

15.574

922

1.729

2.476

107

20.573

30

4,638

550

899

3.215

Total

4.932.840

427.128

353.603

17,696

14,384.307
898,056

513.540

506.638

518.164

427.228

181.678

136.724

196.781

18,879

22.230

139,885
136.936

110.012

68.241 8 23.924.325

See Notes to RnaiKlal Statements
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consolidated STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBFR 31. 2022 AMD

CASH FLOWS FROM OPE^TING ACTIVrnES
Change in net assets
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to

I?*!?®-® > operatlng,a«ivitles;.
Gontriljutioh ofbuildlhg' impfovemenls
Depreciation

Loss {gain) on disposal ofjprofw^ i ^ >.
Forgiveness of debt - Payche*^ pVot^ctidii Program

Decrease (increase) in assets: '
Aixpunts/ecelvable / .. .
Contrtoutions receivable,
ihveritory' ' " ^

■ Prepaid expenses
Other cyrjentassets;,
Si^rity deposits
Other noncurrent assets

lncrease^(decrease) ln-.|iabilities:'
.^j^untsipayable j ^,
A^^^'p^yrpli and related taxes
A(^'ed wmpensated absence's
Deferred revenue:<id'

Refundable advances
Other Mirent liabilities

'Securrt^deposits ■

NET CASH PROVIDED BYjOPE^TING ACTiviTTES

CASH FLOWS^FROM IWESTING'aC^^
Purchase of property'anS fejuipment^^
Proceedsonsaleofpropertyi.;:'- •> !'
Acquis.itipn of propertyJrom^Ooye/ Daycare Learning Center

NET CASH PROVIDED' bY (USED IN) InVeSTING 'ACTT^

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACnvmES
Borrowlr^8,oflon^ermdebt . ,
Payments made w io^lem 'debt"
Net'repayments'oh demajicl hote payable . «

. Assumption of debt of.Dover OaycareiLeamIng Center

NET CASH PfJo^lDEo'^BY^^^^^^
NET INCREASE (0'ECREASE)'JN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
'  . . . .'''"i '"-iCiz-.tV' •• .
CASH AND restricted CASH. BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND' RESTRICTED CASH. END OF YEAFl

.  . t K

CASH AND RESTRICTED,CASH
Cash ,
Restricted cash:

Insurance'esctw

Taxescrow.

Ref^acement reserves
Oj^'reting reserve

Total cash and restricted cash

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest

See Notes to Financial Statements
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2022 2021

$• 48,081 $  997,083

•  « V 5 .

(170.288)
239.035 196,781

' (27^491) 51,681

•" • (97.500)

(426,'6^1) 138.692
(37,400) 25.800
9,780 (285.299)

(15.380) (348)
1334 (1.334)

42 (3.143)
j  . • 1,997

(475,081) (576,646)
.:(7^22J) 47.565
60,294 14,126

. (107,606)
630,909 477.574
73,462 (1.318)

- 3.201

73:715 711.018

=  (506,141) (323,975)
606:000 .

.o, -. i
(590.900)

-T-

93,859

(352.539)

(352.539)

(IM'.MSj

1,569,528

(914.875)

326,463

(46.188)
(105,377)
284,176

457,074

253.217

1,316.311

$  1.384;563 $ 1.569.528

$  1,355:-108 S 1,550.537

9,193

5,'952
4.-363

.9,947

5,493

1,125

2,501

9,872

S  1.384.563 $ 1.569.528

121.765 133^966



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization and Principles of Consolidation

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (the Agency) is a 501(c)(3)
private New Hampshire non-profit organization established under the provisions
of the Equal Opportunity Act of 1964. Without services provided by the Agency,
many local residents would be without a means to provide for their basic needs,
including food, education, child care, utilities assistance, transportation, housing,
emergency shelter and access to other services. The mission of the Agency is to
educate, advocate and assist people in Strafford County to help meet their basic
needs and promote self-sufficiency. The vision of the Agency is to eliminate
poverty in Strafford County through compassion, education, self-sufficiency,
transparency, accountability, team work, client focus and professionalism.

Academy Street Family Housing, LLC (Academy Stree't) is a limited liability
company which is consolidated because the Agency controls 100% of the voting
power of Academy Street. Academy Street leases property from the Agency
under a lease agreement for an annual rent amount of $1. The lease expires
during April 2045. Unless either party serves the other with a 180 day written
notice prior to the expiration of the initial term, at the end of the initial term, the
lease shall be automatically extended for an additional 25 year term. All
significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
consolidated financial statements.

In addition to the Agency's administrative office located in Dover, the Agency
maintains its outreach capacity by operating program offices in Farmington,
Milton, Rochester, Dover and Somersworth. The Agency is funded by Federal,
state, county and local funds, as well as United Way grants, public utilities,
foundation and charitable grant funds, fees for service, private business
donations, and donations from individuals. The Agency is governed by a tripartite
board of directors made up of elected officials, community leaders from for-profit
and non-profit organizations and residents who are low income. The board is
responsible for assuring that the Agency continues to assess and respond to the
causes and conditions of poverty in its community, achieve anticipated family and
community outcomes,. and remain administratively and fiscally sound. The
Agency administers a wide range of coordinated programs to more than 15,000
people annually, and the programs are designed to have a measurable impact on
poverty and health status among the most vulnerable residents: those under the
age of 6, the elderly and those living in poverty. This coordinated approach is
accomplished by providing a broad array of services that are locally defined,
planned and managed with community agencies.
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ANd:affiliatf

CONSOLIDATED NOTES: TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDEDjOECEMBER 31. 2022 AND:?n9l

Basis of Accounting
The torfsolidat^^^ statements have been prepared usinq the accrual

sru'Sif IS?""
'  k'' • •'*

Finahcial.Staternent Presentation .
The consolidated financial stafemehfs have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US .GMP), which require the

.rS regarding its financial position and activitiesaccording to the following net asset classifications;

Net assets"without doridf restrictions; Net assets that are not subject to
fpstqqBpns. ajrid may be expended for any purpose in

Perfgrmingithe primary, objectives of the Agency. These net assets may be
used at the discretion of the Agency's management and board of
directors.

Net 3 assets'With donor restrictions- Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by-donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary
in nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Agency or bv
fff®^-3®:°i:^'''^®i^°!^®^^'°"°^^PStl:ictions are perpetuaj-ln nature, wherebythe donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in gprpetiiity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported asJncreases in-net assets with
donor restrictions. When restriction expires, neVassets are* reclassified
,from pet ass.ets with .,donor restrictions to netliassets without donor
restrictip,ps in the-statement of activities.

p1:.r2.022 and 2021. the Agency had net assets without donor and
with donor restrictions.

Refundable Advances ...
Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and
recognized as revenue in the period in which the related services are performed
or expenditures are incurred.

11



COMMUNITY ACTION

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless
specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the
donor for future periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily
restricted or permanently restricted support, depending on the nature of the
restriction. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the
contribution is received, the Agency reports the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services u i-Aor, ao^-
Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC
No. 958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the
services (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized
skills and would otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized
as contributions in the* financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Unless othenvise indicated, fair values of all reported assets and liabilities that
are financial instruments approximate the carrying values of such amounts.

Inventory . ̂ ^ * u * ^
Inventory materials are fixtures for installation and recorded at cost or contributed
value, using the first-in, first-out method.

Property and Depreciation

Property and equipment, which have a cost greater than $5,000, are capitalized
at cost or. if donated, at the approximate fair value at the date of donation.
Specific grants and awards may have a threshold lower than this amount and
that program will abide by those guidelines. Assets are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method as follows;

Buildings and improvements 15 - 40 years
Furniture, equipment and machinery 3 -10 years
Vehicles 5 - 7 years

Depreciation expense aggregated $239,035 and $196,781 for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Accrued Earned Time

The Agency has accrued a liability of $205,528 and $145,234 at December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively, for future compensated leave time that its
employees have earned and which is vested with the employee.

12



AND!AFFILjlATF

QGNSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORtTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 ANP^2Q21

Income Taxes

The Agency is exempt from income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal
RevenuejCode, The Internal Revenue Service =has determined the Agency to be
o.theri.than a private-foundation. The Agency us also exempt from the New
Hampshire Business Enterprise Tax. ;

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting ̂fof^'Income Taxes",
establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial 'staterpehts. Management has
analyzed the-Agency's tax-positldn taken on its information' returns for the
previous three tax years and-has cdnclucl^d that no additional provision for
Income taxes Is necessary'iri the A^gency's financial'staVements.'"

Cash and. CashtEoulvalente
The Agency considers all highly liquid, financial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition Policy

Thp"Agency denyes" revenue from grants, fees for services, donations, public
Revenues are recognized when control of these

servic^, are -transferred to "customers, in , ah, amount that reflects the
consideration the Agency expects to be entitled to in exchange for those
seryices. Cost incurred.tp^pbtain a contract will be expensed as'incurred when
the amortization period is-.less-thaha year .

Academy Street derives revenue from the rental of apartment units. Revenues
are recognized as income, monthly, when rents becortie ̂ fue and control of the
apartment units is transferred ̂ to the Jessees. Controf of the, leased units is
transferred to the lessee jn an ̂ chan'g#^br,tffe lihitsr-The cJost incurred to
obtain a lease will'be expensed as incurred.

Ube" of Estinfiates
The%es'ehtati6h of TinandaJ statements In conformity , with .generally accepted
accounting phriciples requires niaria'gemeht 'td make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and Jiatjillties, and. disclosure of
contingent assets'aria liabilities at the date'of^the firiancial statements and the
reported .amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results-could differ frorh those estimates.

Advertlsinq.Expenses ■

The Agency expenses .advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended December 31. 2022 and ,2021 amounted to $72,759
and 332,082, respectively.

13



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

Debt Issuance Costs

As required under FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03,
amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
amounted to $3,376 and $2,970 and has been included with interest expense in
the consolidated statement of activities for each year. The unamortized deferred
financing costs have been included as a reduction of the long term debt (see
Note 9).

In-kind Contributions
The Agency pays below-market rent for the use of certain facilities. In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the difference
between amounts paid for the use of the facilities and the fair value of the rental
space has been recorded as an in-kind donation and as an in-kind expense in
the accompanying financial statements. The estimated fair value of the donation
was determined to be $14,772 and $185,979 for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated
fair value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $968,268
and $5,040, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2022. For the year
ended December 31, 2021, the estimated fair value of these food commodities
and goods was determined to be $594,404 and $3,895, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed professional services that are required to
be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of
these services was determined to be $113,778 for the year ended December 31,
2021. There were no contributed professional services for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among
the program services and supporting activities benefited. Occupancy costs have
been grouped and allocated to the programs as a line item. Such allocations have
been determined by management on an equitable basis.

The expenses that are allocated include the following:

Expense Method of allocation

Salaries and benefits Time and effort

Occupancy Square footage/revenues

Depreciation Square footage

All other expenses Approved indirect rate

14



CQMIVIUNITY ACTION PARTNFRSHIP OF straffqrd county
ANDrAFFII^IATF

PPN-SOLIDATED notes TP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

NewAcGOuntinq Pronouncements
In February 2016,, the FASB T.issueid ASU ■2ai6-62. Leases, to increase
transparericy 3h^.cornparability;^mprig organizations-by recognizing lease assets
%hd.,Jea§e.. liabilities'on the statement of financial position andi disclosing key
informajipn,:about leasing uairangements. In consideration lof the most recent
deferral of the ASU effective date as of the date of these financial statements, the
ASU is effective for financial statements issued for fiiscal yearsi^beginning after
Decerri^er 15, 2021 with^earjy adoption permitted! usTrig a modified retrospective
approach. The Agency adoptedtthe.provisions of ASU 2016-02 during 2022.
In September 2020, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2020-07, Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958): Pc^entatlpQ -and DJsd^ by Not-
forrProfit Entires /or Contributed Nonfinancial Assets,^^ m' iended to improve
trpnspareneyrin the reporting of contributed nonflnancial assets,'^also known as
giftsMn-kind; for not-for-profit organizations.. Examples of^cdntributed nonflnancial
assets include fixed assetst'such as land, buildings, and; equiprhent; the use of
fixed assets or utilities; materials and supplies, such as food or clothing-
intangible assets; and recognized coritribuied services. Jhe-ASU'Vequires a not-
forrprbfit organization to present contributed nonflnancial assets as a separate
line-item in the statement of activities, apart from contributions, of cash or other

,  'financial, assets.-. It^ also'^ requires -certain disclosures' fdr each category of
contributed nonflnancial assets recognized. The Agency adopted the provisions
of ASU 2020-07 during 2022.

NOTE 2. PROPERTY V
As ofOecember 31, 2022 and 2021, property consisted of the following:

2022 2021

Land, buildirigs and improvements $ 6,181,672 $ 6,324 193
Furniture, equipment and machinery 398,645 340 883
Vehicles 350.136 350.'136

,  6,936-453 7,015,212Less accumulated depreciation 1.125.834 905 190

Net property

15



OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 3. RESTRICTED CASH BALANCES
Certain cash accounts have been established and are being funded in accordance
with a regulatory agreement entered into between Academy Street and New
Hampshire Housing as discussed below. All reserves are required to be held in
qualified New Hampshire financial institutions that are insured by the FDIC.

Operating Reserve

Under the regulatory agreement, Academy Street is required to establish an
operating reserve. The operating reserve was established during the year ended
December 31, 2021 and funded during the year ended December 31, 2022.

Replacement Reserve

Under the regulatory agreement, Academy Street is required to set aside amounts
for the replacement of property and other expenditures approved by New
Hampshire Housing. Additionally, Academy Street is required to make monthly
payments to the reserve. The reserve was properly funded during 2022 and 2021.

Insurance and Real Estate Tax Escrows

Academy Street is required to establish a reserve to fund tax and insurance
payments in the project. Amounts are to be deposited on a monthly basis to accrue
a sufficient balance to pay future tax and insurance bills of the project. As of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the balance in the reserves for tax and insurance
escrows was properly funded.

NOTE 4. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
The following represents the Agency's financial assets as of December 31, 2022
and 2021:

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Restricted cash

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used
within one year:

Restricted cash

Board designated funds

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

16

2022

$ 1,355,108
2.556,852

50,000

29.455

29,455
307.315

2021

$ 1,550,537
2,130,211

12,600
18.991

3,991,415 3,712,339

18,991
307.315



-AND AFFILIATF

CONSQUIDATED NPIES TO, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F.ORfTHE YEARS-ENDED DEGEMBER-SI. 2022 AND ?Qg1

The Agency s goal is generally to maintain.'.financiaKassets-to meet 30 days of
operating.expenses. As part of its liquidity plan;, excess cash is invested in short-
term;investments, including^rriohey marketaccounts. "

notes. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credjgtqja'ccounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated toibe-zero ̂ 'December 31,
2022 and 2021. The Agency has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

notes. CONTRIBUTIONS receivable :

Contributions receivable represent promises to-give;'which.;have been made by
donors but have not ;yet been received, by the Agency. The Agency considers
contributions receivable .to be. fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance for
contributions receiyable^has, been recorded.

Total unconditional promises to give were as follows; at, December 31, 2022 and
2021! ' . ' r , ,

Within one year
In tw.0 :t0;five years

.  .-2022

$  30,000
,  r >^20.000

2021

8,500
4.100

note 7. PLEDGED ASSETS

As described in Note 8, all assets of the Agency are pledged as collateral under
the Agency's demand, note payable agreement. As described in Note 9 the
building of the Agency is pledged as collaterahunder;the Agency's mortgage note
payable agreement. \
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rOMMUNITY ACTinM PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORP COUNTY
AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTES. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE
The Agency has available a revolving line of credit with a bank in the amount of
$250,000. The note is payable upon demand. Interest is stated at the prime rate
plus 1% which resulted in an interest rate of 8.50% at December 31, 2022 and
4.25% at December 31, 2021. The note is collateralized by all the assets of the
Agency. There was no outstanding balance on the demand note payable as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021.

NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT
The long term debt at December 31. 2022 and 2021 consisted of the following:

Mortgage payable to Kennebunk Savings Bank-
which had interest only payments for 36 months
followed by principal and interest payments for
264 months. During the year ended December 31,
2022 the note was refinanced to a fixed interest
rate of 4.25% for the first ten years resulting in
monthly principal and interest payments of
$11,170. On April 26, 2032, and on that date every
year thereafter, principal and interest payments
will adjust to 1.50% above the highest U.S Prime
Rate as published in the Wall Street Journal on
the applicable change date, with a floor rate of 4%.
The note matures in 2043. The mortgage payable
is secured by real estate.

5.00% notes payable to the New Hampshire
Community Loan Fund with monthly principal and
interest payments of $3,251, maturing October
2037. The notes are secured by real estate.

5.75% note payable to First Seacoast Bank with
monthly principal and interest payments of $493.
The note was secured by real estate and was paid
off during 2022.

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Harripshire Housing deferred until April 21, 2060
or until the project is sold, refinanced or surplus
cash is available. The note is secured by real
estate.

2022 2021

$1,846,509 $1,909,874

406,854 668,143

31.261

785,889 785.889
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AHID AFFILIATF

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE^YEARS ENDEDlDEdEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2Q21

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hanigs^hire Housing deferred until July 1, 2051 or
until the project is sold, refinanced or surplus cash
is available. The note is secured by real estate.

Total long term debt before current portion of long
term debt and unamortized debt issuance costs

Current portion of long term debt
Unamortized debt issuance costs

2022

i25755

2021

(95,690)
'(6^.833)

V

25.755

3,065,007 3,420,922

(134.868)
(6fe691

Total long term debt

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at December 31, 2022 is as follows:

Year^Ended
December-Si

'  I

'• 2023

"  2024^

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

Total

Amount:

$  95,690
79;2i8-
82,809
86.562-

^90,488'
2;630}24Q

s 3 065:n07

NOTE 10. NETiASSETS

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, net assets with donor restrlctldns consisted of
the following:

Building campaign
Whole family
COVID related

Homeless outreach
Fuel assistance

Weatherization

Total

2022 2021

- $  59,447
42,755 67,355
120,546 124,546

- 8,317
142,484 80,164

- 18.800

?  S 358629
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORP COUNTY
AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

At December 31. 2022 and 2021, net assets without donor restrictions consisted
of the following:

2022 2021

Undesignated $4,327,547 $4,226,622
Board designated 307,315 307,315

Total net assets without donor restrictions £4.634.862 $4,5?3,9?7

N0TE11. OPERATING LEASES
Facilities occupied by the Agency for its community service programs are rented
under the terms of various leases. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021, the annual lease/rent expense for the leased facilities was $90,501 and
$250,736, respectively.

The Agency accounts for its operating leases under FASB ASC 842. As such, a
right of use ("ROU") asset and corresponding lease liability are recorded in the
statement of financial position. ROU assets represent the Agency's right to use
an underlying asset for the lease term and the lease liabilities represent their
obligation to make the lease payments arising from the lease.

Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement
date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. The
discount rate related to the Agency's lease liability as of December 31, 2022 was
3 75%, which is based upon the risk free borrowing rates commensurate with the
lease "term. At December 31, 2022, the right of use asset and liability is
$146,825.

Common expenses, classified as occupancy costs in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, are considered a non-lease component under
FASB ASC 842 and are recognized as costs as incurred.
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I;INANCIAL-STATEMENTSFOR THE YEARS FMnPn DECEMBER 31. 2022-ANn 7091

Lease liability maturities as of December 31, 2022 is.'as follows:

Year Ending
December 31

2023

2024

2025

2026,

202-7,
Thereafter

Total undiscounted^lease liability

Less imputed interest

Total lease liability

Amount

$  69,901
38,401

,6:90.1

6i901
6,901

31.044

160,049

T13:2241

note 12. RETIREMENTiPl AM

r'- substantiallyalt employees^ Employee contributions to the Plan are fhadeiat-predetermined
rates elected, by employees. . Additionally, the A'SehSy'jirovides a matchina
contribution equal to 25% of the employee's contribution up to S'r of he
eZ ^ ■ 20^16,^.theWehcyh-Ltituted an autoenro Iment feature mandating a minimum 1% employee cdntfibution- however
employees reserve the right to decline the auto enrollment. Employer matchina

anS $?S, lesiectS «32,526

note 13. CONCENTRATION OF RI.SK
The- Agency receives a majority of its support from federal and state

96°/TZqi®o/ December 31, 2022 and 2021, approximately
IhIpT ,»he Agency;s tqtal,revenue was received fromgovernments. If a significant feductiori in the'leVel of support

S£s°''"' " ^ on the Agency's pfogTa^^nd
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AND AFFILIATE

county

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

note 14. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
The Agency maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions in New
Hampshire. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to $250,000. The Agency maintains an agreement with its
primary financial institution to collateralize the balances in excess of $250,000.

NOTE 15. CONTINGENCIES
The Agency receives grant funding frorn various sources. Under the terms of
these agreements, the Agency is required to use the funds within a certain period
and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures
were found not to have, been made in compliance with the laws and regulations,
the Agency might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made
for this contingency because specific amounts,- if any, have not been determined
or assessed as of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

NOTE 16. RENTAL INCOME RECEIVABLE
During the year ended December 31, 2022, and subsequent to year end.
Academy Street entered into four separate rental agreements for use of their four
apartments. The rental agreements have differing expirations ranging from April
2023 through April 2024. Monthly payments for the agreements ranged from
$1,168 to $1,394 and are due the first day of each month.

The approximate future rental payments owed on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ended

December 31 Amount

2023

2024

Total

$ 36,678
11.152

S  47.830

N0TE17. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM
During 2020, the Agency received funds under the Payroll Protection Program
(ppp) The PPP was established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and
Economic Security Act (CARES ACT). The PPP provided loans for qualifying
businesses for amounts up to 2.5 times the average monthly payroll expenses of
the qualifying business. The loans and accrued interest are forgivable after
twenty-four weeks as long as the borrower used the loan proceeds for eligible
purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, and maintained its payroll
levels. The amount of the loan forgiveness may be reduced if the borrower
terminates employees or reduces salaries during the twenty-four-week period.
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note 18.

note 19.

note 20.

ANDAFFIImtc

full forgive^ss a"nd received-co^nying consd,id..ed s1a.e..n?SS Z

DOVER .DA YC A RE LEARKUng CFNtpp
Duriny me year ended December 31 20p"i a
and liabilities of Dover Daycare assets
labilities acquired were approximately $591 ooo Lnri «5Rx"nn'^^'
Agency received $391,856 in revenue as a rLuTnf fh '■®sP®ctively; The
included in other revenue in the accomLnvini .acquisition, which is
activities for the year e^nded December 31 202" statement of

nm!!;°'i?'° Tint I-MnnQ the Year ®ndedrDe'^rnberi3'1' 20?1' o*in the form of building improvements'to the ^r^P^r received a contributionmanaged by the Agency.,.The improvementSS iproperty and other revenue in the December 31, 2021 financS

RECLASSiFr:ATi/-.Kie

Which wSkeIS"tL^ ^"^ncial statements,
the current year presentation. ' financial statements, to conform to

note 21. subsequent EVFMTc

financialJoilordate'LTbeforrfinln^ ?'3tement ofRecognizecl:subsequent events are eupnfc n ♦ ts are available to be issuedevidence,about conditions that existed aTthrstTtemPnt°"f f additionalincluding the estimates ifiherent in th"^ process Sn °^""/"®'a' PPSifion,date,
Nonrecognizdd subsequent events are statements,conditions that did not exist afr sta^menrof fine 'after that,date. Management has evalua^rlh P°®'"on date but arose
^0.3,««. ^
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....TY trTiOH °.°T>.PasHiP OF -^TRAFFORn COUNTY ftNP AFFILIATE
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

nPf^gMBER 31.2022

CAPSC

Academy

Street Family
^ouslno. LLC.

ASSETS

Total

Consoli(^atlng
^rilugtmenta Congolidated

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Contributions receivable
Due from afhliate
Inventory

Prepaid expenses
Current portion of right of use asset

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash
Security deposits .
Property, net of accumulated depreciation
Other concurrent assets ^
Right of use asset, less current portioo shovrn above

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current pottion of long term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Accrued compensated absences
Due to affiliate
Refundable advances

Other current liabilities
Current portion of right of use liability

Total current liabilities

noncurrent LIABILITIES
Long term debt, less current portion shown above
Security deposits
Right of use liability, less current portion shown above

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$  1,281.098 $
2,555.440

50,000

9,123
501.752

52,046
65 513

74,010 $
1,412

1,355,108 $
2,556,852

50,000
9,123

501,752

52,046
65,513

$

(9.123)

1,355.108
2,556,852

50,000

501,752
52,046
65.513

4.514.972 75.422 4.590,394 (9.123) 4.581,271

5,226
4,932.628

25,503
81*312

29,455
3,201

871.991

29.455

8.427

5.804.619
25,503
81,312

•

29,455

8,427
5.804,619

25.503
81,312

5.044.669

c  a (sXQ ftat S

5.949.316 5.949.316

980.069 S 10.539:710 $ . (9,123) $ 10.530.587

I lARIL ITIES awn NET ASSETS

$  75,785 $
425,562

129,018
205,528

1,581,774

72,704

19,905 $
20,396

9,123

758

95,690 $
445,958
129.018
205,528

9,123

1,581.774
73,462
65.513

$

(9.123)

95,690
445,958

129,018
205,528

1,581.774
73,462
65.513

2.555.884 50,182 2.606.066 (9.123) 2.596.943

2,133,018

81 312

775,466

3.201

2,908.484
3,201

81.312

•

2.908,484
3.201

81.312

2.214,330

4,770.214

2.992,997 2.992.997

828.849 5.599,063 (9.123) 5.589,940

4.483.642
305 785

151,220 . 4,634,862
305.785

;
4,634,862
305.785

4.789,427 151,220 4.940.647
4.940,647

%  9.559,641 $ 980,069 i  10,539.710 S (9,123) S 10.530,587

See Notes to Financial Statements
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ggMMUNITY ACTION PrtRTNFRSHIP of strappoph ^^ril lilF
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACnvlTIES

.  POR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBFR Hi on->o

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue
Fees for service
Rent revenue
Public support
In-kind donations
Interest

Fundraising
Ottier revenue
Gain on disposal of property

Total revenues and other support

EXPENSES

Program services
Child services

Corhmunity services
Energy assistance
Housing.
Weatherlzation

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundraising

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

CAPSC

$ 42,329,510
1.976.344

628.346
988,080

199

167.764

1.216

27.491

46.118.949

5.120.775
2.123.402

4,158.324

31.455.192
1.791.979

Academy
Street Family
Housing. LLC

58.600

203

58.803

81,104

ConsolldatAri

$ 42,329.510
1.976.344

58.600

628,345
988.080

,  402

167.764

1,216
27.491

46.177.752

5.120.775
2.123.402

4.158.324
31,536.296

44,649.672

1,179,649
219.246

81,104 44.730.776

1,179,649
219'246

46,048.567 81.104 46.129.671

70.382 (22,301) 48.081

4.719.045 173.521 4.892.566

$  4,789,427 $ 151.220 $ 4.940.^7

See Notes to Financial Statements
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r.nMMUNiTV ACTION partnership QF STRAFFORP CQWNTY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDEF^L AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022

'• o, .xp.nd»u,., .. A«.«s <». «)
1 Hac the foHpral award activity of Community Action Partnership of Stratford

Srundel the Xi government for the year ended December
31 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in acconlance t^
'  • Ti»ija 9 Pode of Federa Regulations Part 200, unitormrequirements of Title 2 U.S. Oode or reoe a Requirements for

Administrative Requirements, Cost Pnncipies, and /tuoi rceq _
Fnderat Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule °
selected portion of the operations of Community Action Partnership of
County, it is not Intended to and does not present the financial position, changes
in net assets, or cash flows of the Agency.

NOTE 2. giiMMARY OF Sir.MlFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICip
Fybenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual Das s or
arrmintlna Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

SS^S^nership of Strafford County has elected not to use the ten
SerTenrde^Tnimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

KSSfSfstance Is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

'SmmuS'S Partnership of Strafford County had no subrecipients for the
year ended December 31, 2022.
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Leone
mmM
&Mob(^s

PftC»PEsSIOi\U-ASSQhuTION
"  ■ '■ certified PUBIilCACCOUNTANTS

'  DOVER:# WOrJT-BORO
. NORTircONttAY

AN.AUDJTCOE mAmiAt'STArPMlilT^^^^^

• " l\ ••• • , .

To the Board of Directors of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County •

Auditing Standards issued by the.'cofnDtroiipr.r ? x ® contained in Gdverrifhehtstatements of Community Action PaSneTsC of
'P»TLT',sz:^T£,irri' 'r""""
titr

"* I. I

Internal Control Over Pinancial B»px,rti,.x,
Action Partnership of sTiffordCo^uml!'s°interna^^ considered Community
to determine the audit procedures that are appronria e control)
expressing our opinion on the financial statements but nm P"rPose of
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnl I Purpose of expressing an
control. Accordingly, we do not eynrPQc an ■ " Partnership of Strafford County's internal
Partnership of Strafford County's internal condor" °f Community Action

management'orSteyTeTtn^hfnSa"^ perfoT'^^T^^
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's fina^cia'i ® reasonable
or detected and corrected, on a timelv back a 5 *^''1 "ot be prevented
combination of deficiencies, in internKnS that ' deficiency, Sr aimportant enough to merit attention by those charged vvith gTvemance^ material weakness, yet



Ou, con>i«™il<,n o( w.m.l oon.ol «.s?„.g™ph of m »ct»P .Pd
s.pt."d?r sSd.r«.."-»

been identified.

Compliancp and Other Matters «,hpthpr Communitv Action Partnership of
AS part of obtaining ^easonab^assurance we performed
Stratford County s financial statements ® , . reoulations contracts, and grant
tests of its compliance with ^ave a 'direct and material effect on the
agreements, noncompliance with However providing an opinion on compliance
determination of financial statement amounts^ Howeve , provia^g p
„i,h prodlsiod. ... •' »"»'

compliance and the results of that testing, . y.. reoort is an integral part of an auditthe organizalion's internal control ot on ^ standaro. in considering the

Cn«on" ,»rarco"n?ro. S cro^ir"Accoroingl?, thi. con,ro.n«on . not .0,.hie
for any other purpose.

Dover, Nevi/ Hampshire
June 15, 2023
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Leone, ,
Mt^ffnell
&MoBerts

Pr<OFF.S.StON;y.ASSOCIAT[()N

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

DOV'ER • WOLFEBORO
NORTH CONWAY

■COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIR QF STiRAFFORD.COUNTY
■  t-v . r ^ :: ■. : . ■ -

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BYTHE UNIFORM GUIDANCE
^  - ■- o

To the Board of Directors of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County ■

Report on Compliance for.Each Major Federal Program , .
t  . . : I . i' . jO K - ' • ■ -iiC" i)
Opinion on.Each Major Rederal.Proaram
We; haye aJdited/Community.Action Paijnershjp of Strafford County's cprTipliance->with the
typps of cornpllance requirements (dentified as' subject ,to .audit .in the OMB CornQliance
Supjo/emenf that could, have a ^^rect.and, rriaterial^ie^^ on each pf^Cpiximunity. /^tjon
P^aftnerehiiD of ^ major; federajpprqgrani.s for the year ended [^qcejnber'31,
;2p22:;,j..Cjomn^^^ A0lonPartnership of sirafford County's major.; federajj-^programspare
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompariyingjs.clie^uiecof=findingis
and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Community Action Partnership of .Strafford-Gpun^.cbmpljed;^^^ material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and rhaterial effect on each of its major federal programs for the ye'aV ended'^Secfe^mber 31
2022.

Basis-fbr Opinion on, Each Major Federal-Program u .
We^-conclut^ed our audit of-cornpliance- in accordance v/jth auditirig standards generally
aqceptedjh, the U States of ^Ar^erica; the. standards,; ^ tp financial audits
contained Jn C3ovemmenf Sfandards.jssued.by the Comptrp.lier General of thp United
States: and the audit requirements of title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirerfidhts, Cost Pnnciples, and'^Aud'it Re'quiremiehts ?dr Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance)., Our' responsibilities under those standards ahd' the Uniform
Guidance are further descnbed in the^Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of'Cornpliance
section of our report. ' - . ■. - •



We are required to be independent of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
apj)ropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's federal
programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance based
on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with * generally
accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance wilt
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance with the requirements of each
major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Govemment
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design arid perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.
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■ goport on Internal Contmi Comniian.^

control oveTc'LpliaS doS'°no°a1low°SSlS?r emo\ ^
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detectTnd <=0"fse of
lype,pfcpmpliancp roquirementofafederalDroaram oI f » 1 u ' "oncompliance with a
"itemal control over compliance is a deficiency or a icorrlhiKir--control over compliance, such that there is - °Tc ^
noncompliance with a type of compliance reoLpmo ♦ ! possibility that material
prevented, or defected and corrected'on a timeiu hii « : Pg»?,ff!m yvjil not be
<^O0troJ^Yef Co^fi0-^pe \5 a deficiency, or a combination internal
ovef .pomplianpe with altype of compliance reaiiirpm»n» ■0[:'''^^P'®d-Cies, in, infernal controlthan a material weakness in internal control over mm i-^ ®deral,program that is less severe
attention by those charged with governance '' lance, yet important enough to merit

Se'CSSSE rSSSnplilr:::^ '1^ into identi^ all deficiencies in intemarcontrr ovar 1°" dot designed
^?.^he^8, pir;^8i|nl^nt deficiencies in internal conM^ve^® ' i- be., ;materiallirnitations, durina quf audit ,we did not idS inf din ^i"®" '^®®e
compliande that we consider to be raterial S£«es a, internal, control over

internal cpntrol over cor^phiS. A^Z°gJy, iTu'l^rSoriSp effectiveness of

Of the Undorm Guidance, S ̂  £

Dover, New Hampshire
June 15, 2023
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nOMMUNITV ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1  The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial
statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County were prepared
accordance with GAAP.

2 No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the ̂ nancial^statements are ̂
the indGoendent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repoding and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Staternents
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses
reported.

3 No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Stendards, were disclosed during the audit.

A wn cinnifirant deficiencies in internal, control over major federal award programs are
*  reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance ̂ or Ea^
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance.
material weaknesses are reported.

The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Cornmunity
Action Partnership of Strafford County expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
federal programs.

6 There were no audit findings that would be required to be reported in accordance with 2
CFR section 200.516(a).

Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Program, ALN 21.023.

8. The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.
9. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County was determined to not be a low-risk

auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMSC
AUDIT

None
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Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Board of Directors 2024

Name

Terry Jarvis, Chair
Jean Miccolo, Treasurer
Alan Brown, Secretary
Heather Blumenfeld, Executive Director
Anthony M. Carr
Le^'Croiiser

Nicki Gearwar
Robeh'Hahington
Sat^'

ifa'tnn 'Kasper
Glmsfine^itlcCluskey
Brandi McKay-Berry
Ian Qneai.l

Jarnes Rathbim

Maureen Staples
Steve Trozinski

Mark Toussaint

Robert Warach

Page 1 of 1



NH Department of Energy

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

siiWiiiHii
sittsi&lfiSlis

rAMduMPAJb^^

•ftJiCONTRACT^^;; ..X", •

Julia Barrette TREAT Modeling Technician

Energy Auditor

Energy Auditor

Housing Development &Revitalizat

100% $48,900.80

$45,760.00

$52,499.20

$78,832.00

Zachary Aham 100%

Vicki Pease 100%

Bob Arnold 100%

Derek Bollotta Energy Auditor 100% $45,760.00



Julia Barrette

I am a customer service professional with a strong ability to multi-task, prioritize, and manage
time effectivety. I am a resourceful problem solver who Is adept at remaining calmjn.stressful
situations and effectively assisting a variety of clients. I have 3 years of experience In the training and
management of associates and 1 year of experience in social service case management;-especially
housing In New Hampshire.

Authorized to work in the US for any employer

Work Experience

Housing Lead Recertlfier (NHERAP).
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County • Rochester. N'H
Present

• Assisting with the hiring and training of new Housing Recertiflcatlor) staff

• Maintaining a broad understanding of the Housing RecertiflcaOon de^rtment

• Being available to Housing Recertlficabon staff to answer questions, offer support and be the first
point of contact for escalated cases.

• Collecting program/department data and creating reports as requested.

• Staying current on any/all program/process changes and updates.

• Benefit determination. Benefit Approval, and Denial accdrcJing to program specification

General Case Manager
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County • Rochester, NH ^
September 2021 to September 2022 ... -

• social services.through the NH Emergency RentarAssistance Prograrn (NherAP)

• monitoring and evaluating program compliance and procedures In accordance with CAP policies

• monitoring electronic and hart copy prt^ram service documentation to ensure appropriate Information
has been docurnehted - . , ^

• timely services to clients

Home TA
Walmart - Rochester, NH

May 2021 to September 2021



• providing Customer Service

• receiving, stocking, and organizing merchandise and supplies

• maintaining the home area and merchandising presentation

Independent Contractor
Appen. Inc - Remote

August 2018 to August 2021

• Data Entry

• Machine Learning

Personal Shopper
Waimart - Rochester, NH

January 2020 to May 2021

• providing Customer Service

• fulfililng online grocery orders

• inventory management

Team Manager
D+S Europe Communication Center - Hamburg

June 2011 to March 2013

• Managing 32 team members. Including scheduling

• Communicating with S^P customers

• Providing training to employees

• Assistant to Project Manager

Team Coach

D+S Europe Communication Center • Hamburg

August 2010 to June 2011

• Training new team members

• Writing training programs

Customer Support Representative
D+S Europe Communication Center - Hamburg

June 2009 to August 2010

• Telekom escalation support

• Ist level support Vodafone - Troubleshooting basic phone and Intemet connection

• 2nd level support Vodafone - Troubleshooting networks. PC problems, cellphone Issues

Education

Non-Degree Seeking Undergrad Major In People & Business Leadership
Certificate of Completion, 4.0
Bellevue University - Bellevue. NE

June 2021 to August 2021

High School Diploma and State Certified Assistant In Screen Design
Steinhauerdamm Vocational College - Hamburg. Germany



June 2005 to June 2007

Skills

• E-Gpmfnerce'(2,y:ga^) !'

•' Microsoft Office (10+ years)
• Data Entry (5 years)

• Customer Service (6 years)
• Office Experience (5 years)

• Team Management (2 years)

• Inventory Management (2 years)

• Social Work (1 year)

• Benefit Certification (1 year)

i-.
ts,-. ■-! \ 1 ■

• • v.

Languages

• German - Expert
• English - Fluent

Certifications and Licenses

Driver's License
February 2021 to November 2025

New Hampshire Driver's License



ZACHARYAHAM

OBJECTIVE

SKILLS

I 3m looking for a position where 1 can use my experience and knowledge to grow. I am Interested in

pursuing a career in environmental science. I have taken many courses in environmental studies, it is

where my strengths, interests and passion lie

WORK HISTORY

Works well with others

Active learner

Determined

Strong worK ethic

Excellent public speaking skills

Advanced experienced hiker

Four years on the Pinkerton Cross Country

Four years on the Pinkerton Track & Field Indoor & Outdoor teams

Two years on the Franklin Pierce University Cross Country and Track & Field team

LANDSCAPING • ALL SEASON LANDSCAPING

May 2022-Sep 2022

Lawn care

Hardscapes

Wall construction

Gardening

Large machme operation

MAINTAINCE • COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OFSTRAFFORD COUNTY

Dec 2021-Feb 2022

Small construction projects

Paint and wall repair

Spring and fall clean up

Building repairs and clean out



LANDSCAPING • SELF EMPLOYED
'  {

May 2018-Sep 2021

Worked for Individual in need of yard care

Kept individual schedules and appointments

Small construction projects

Lawn care ' ' '

Spring and fall clean up

Gardening

CAMP COUNCILOR • NOTTINGHAM PARKS AND RECREATION

June 2019-Aug 2021

Nature councilor and sports councilor for 3 years

Responsible for children in outdoor classroom including:

Nature walks, identification lessons and physkalfitness

Enforcement of Covid protocols and children safety

CPR certified

EDUCATION GR^T BAY COMMUNITY CpLLEGE^

FRANKLIN PIERCE UNIVERSITY

Environmental Science

Including classes in;

Biology

Biological Ethics

Anatomy & Physically

Ecology

Anatomy 8i Physiology

PINKERTON HIGH SCHOOL

Athletic Scholar

Track scholarship recipient

REFERENCESAVAJLABLE UPON REQUEST



Vicki Pease

Key Qaaiificatioo
• Detail-oriented professional committed to process excellence through strong

organizational skills and analytical abilities.
• Successful team leadership resulted in exceeding project completion goals.
• Resilient and dependable under pressure, with ability to prioritize multiple tasks and

meet or exceed deadlines.

Process ExceUeoce

• Certified Building Analyst BPI ID 5067752
• Certified Heating Professional BPI ID 5067752
• OSHA 10 and 40 Certified

• Weatherization tech: under my leadership, the team reached BTL (Building Tightness
Limit) goals through greater attention to detail and efficient organization.

• Weatherization tech: restructured inventory management for the weatherization team,
resulting in savings in inventory used and tech time.

• Maintenance tech: responsible for 210 apartment units all repairs, maintenance,
elevator equipment certifications, fire safety systems, boiler certificates

Trades Skills

• Building analyst professional: on site review of residential buildings systems,
testing, data collection, analyzing collected data, modeling, and work scope.

• Energy efficiency consultant: on-site review and analysis of existing light
fixtures to recommend more efficient products.

• Certified Apartment Maintenance Technician (CAM-T) since 2017.
• Experience with building principles such as framing and drywall, repair, and basic

plumbing and electrical installation.
• Extensive experience with hand and power tools.
• Weatherization: injection foam insulation application
• Forklifl and tractor operator.

EmDiovmcnt HLstorv

2022- Present Energy Auditor, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover NH

2016- 2022 Maintenance Technician II, Avesta Housing, Exeter NH.

2015-2015 Energy Efficiency Consultant, Prism Energy Services, Quincy, MA

2013-2015 Receiver Walmart, Raymond, NH

2009-2013 Weatherization Team Tech Lead, Comm. Action Partnership., Straff. County,
Dover, NH

Education

Marketing Mcintosh College, Dover, NH

Word and data processing Notre Dame College, Manchester NH



Robert J. Arnold, Housing Development and Revitalization Director & Weatherization Program Manager
Community Action Partnership of Straffprd County

Email: bamoId@straffordcap.org Phone: (603) 435-2500 x.8151
Work Experieoce

Homing Development and Revitalization Director. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover,
NH, Dec 2021 - Present

•  Overww all housing development and renovation projects where Community Action was the primary
developer. ' ' ' "' ' . -

• Worked with architects, planning'officials, code enforcement and-contractors to ensure successful
completion of projects.

•  Oversaw the management of the Weatherization Assistance Program and integrated WAP capabilities
with ongoing projects. . .

•  Responsible for hiring and training energy efficiency staff.
•  Reorganized project and pipeline management procedures with an emphasis on scalability.
• Managed all low-income energy efficiency projects within Strafford County. .

•  7tn ' ' ' ''(

Weatherization Program Manager. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County. Dover, NH. Mar 2017
-Present

•  Responsible for administering the Strafford Couh^^l^H Weatherization Assistance Program.
• Worked^with various pommittees.and non-profit organizations which provide economic development,

housing and homeless prevention services in the region.
• Managed all energy efficiency projects in the iow-ihconie sect6r''within Strafford Co'uhtyi^NH^
•  Responsible for all aspects.pf the Weatheri^on AssUt^cePrpgram including,pipeline management,

budgeting, project leveraging, job tracking, contractor relations, hinng and training new employees.
•  Responsible for timely completion'andsubmittaJ ofgrant applications, triicking of applications)' n^ipt

of grants, monitoring grant actiyity.to ensure adherence to g^tdmellnes^and .budgets, and.prepwng
quarterly, semi-annual, annual and close-but grant'reports' for submission '^o glantor an^or other
regulatory agencies. i. .

•  Experienced with grant writing and review, particularly HUD and USDA grants.
•  Experienced in contract negotiation, review and implementation.
•  Coordinated and worked directly with multiple contractors and entities in the course of large renovation

projects.
•  Experienced in identifying and packaging layered energy efficiency measures to achieve optimal energy

savings.

Owner and Private Contractor. Bob Arnold Contracting. Rochester NH. June 2006 - Mar 2017

Senior Loan Officer, East West Mortgage, Peabody, MA. Get 2004 - Jun 2006

Branch Manager. Critifinancial, Midwest City. OK Nov 1999 - Oct 2004

Branch Manager, General Acceptance Corporation. Gladstone, MO. Nov 1996-Nov 1999

Military Service/Military Awards

1985-1989 US Navy Active Duty (Honorable Discharge)

1989-1990 USN Reserve

1990-1991 US Navy Active Duty (Operation Desert Storm), (Honorable Discharge)

1991-2001 US Navy Inactive Ready Reserve

US Navy Good Conduct Medal, Southwest Asia Service Medal (3 Stars), Saudi Arabian Medal for the Liberation
of Kuwait, Emirate of Kuwait Medal for the Liberation of Kuwait, National Defense Service Medal, US Navy
Sea Service (2), US Navy Marine Corps Overseas Service Ribbon (1)
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Robert J. Arnold, Housing Development and Revitalization Director & Weatherization Program Manager
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Email: bamold@straffordcap.org Phone: (603) 435-2500 x.8151

EdocatioiiyCertlficatioDS

BPI HEA Energy Auditor, New York State Weatherization Directors Association, 2021

BPI HEA Quality Control Inspector, New York State Weatherization Directors Association, 2021

BPI Building Analyst, Lakes Region Community College, 2017

OSHA 30 Certification, Keene State College, 2020

Building Operator Certification I, Lakes Region Community College, 2021

Mold Inspector (CMI), 360trainjng.com

No Degree, Penn Valley Community College, 1990-1991

Organlzadons

Associate Member, New York State Weatherization Directors Association, 2021 - Present

Member, Strafford County Public Health Network Lead Poisoning Task Force, 2020 - Present

Member, Building Performance Association, 2019 - Present

Member, Northeast Home Energy Rating System Alliance, 2019- Present

Member, Residential Energy Performance Association, 2019 - Present

Member, New Hampshire WAP Technical Committee, 2018-Present

Honorary Warrior, Tribe of Mic-O-Say, Boy Scouts of America

Member, AMVETS

Member, Veterans of Foreign Wars
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PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Dependable employee seeking opportunity to expand skills and contribute to company success. Considered
hardworking, ethical and detail-oriented. Good at troubleshooting problems and building successfuf'solUtiohsrExcellent
verbal and written communicator with strong background cultivating positive relationships and e'w^ing goals. Ready to
take on challenges using problem-solving arid task priorltizatjon skills to help team succeed.

SKILLS

>  Inventory Sorting/Management

Heavy Lifting Proficiency

Workplace Safety Protocols

Adaptability and Flexibility

Organizational'Abilities

EXPERIENCE

Maintaining Records

Intermediate computer skills

Attention to Detail

Teamwork and Collaboration

Analytical Thinking

• Hand ahd'Power Tool Operation
• Efficient Work Pace

• Customer Service
r ' > . , ,

• Workplace Cleanliness

Comrriercial Cleaner

Garriwn HjU Commercial Cleaners j Rochester. NH
• Vacuumed carpets and upholstery to remove dirt and debris.

• Polished windows, glass partitions, and mirrors using appropriate products.

• Swept and mopped floors in commercial buildings.

• Dusted furniture, shelves, and other surfaces to maintain clean environment.

• Scrubtied and sanitized restrooms to kill germs.

• Restocked supply closets with necessary equipment and cleaning solutions.

Construction Laborer

Site Structure j EUot ME

• Shoveled materials into portable cement mixers to mix. pour and spread concrete.

• Cleared sites of rubble, debris and waste materials.

• Kept tools, equipment and vehicles ready for projects to avoid unnecessary delays.

• Assisted with organizing supplies and setting up equipment

• Well-versed In operating various power tools and heavy machinery safety.

• Followed safety guidelines at all times to prevent accidents and injuries.

January 2024 - Current

October 2023 - February i2024

Overnight Manager

Planet Fitness I Somersworth. NH

• Structured and executed strategies to increase business and drive profit growth.

• Supervised and guided employees to reach company objectives.

• Sanitized high-touch surfaces and advised gym visitors of current safety protocols,

• Restocked supplies and replenished linens to maintain gym standards.

• Trained new employees on gym policies, procedures, software systems, and safety protocols.

January 2023 - October 2023



Press Operator & Kitting Department November 202a - April 2022
Promocentric I Newmarket NH

• Prepared machine for operation by selecting, positioning and aligning dies in machine ram and bed.

• Communicated effectively with management to address Issues related to scheduling, workload distribution, or
equipment rralfunctions. .

« Utilized water-based ink, solvents and chemicals to complete tasks.

• Examined standards of raw materials to create pieces following specifications,

Paint Department Associate March 2021 - November 2021

Home Depot I Somersworth. NH

• Demonstrated knowledge of various paint types, applications, and techniques to customers.

• Operated paint mixing machines to prepare custom colors according to customer specifications.

• Communicated with suppliers regarding product availability or shipment delays.

• Conducted inventory checks and maintained accurate records of available products.

Electronics Sales Associate October 2020 - January 2021
Target i Somersworth. NH

• Utilized company resources to stay informed about upcoming promotions, sales events, and new product releases.

• Collaborated with tearn members to achieve sales goals and provide exceptional customer service.

• Hauled new stock from storeroom to sales floor to replenish display items.

• Organized store displays to promote sales and attract customer interest

Bagger & Grocery Stocking April 2017 - October 20:7
Market Basket I Seabrook. NH

• Responded to product inquiries and escorted clients to specific locations to deliver superior customer service.

• Followed proper safety protocols while performing tasks in workplace.

• Assisted cashiers and staff during heavy flow of customers to promote teamwork.

EDUCATiON

Diploma - High School June 2020

Spaulding High School Rochester, NH


